25|

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page
(New schools that were not open for instruction for
the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete

or submit an annual report this year).
Created: 07/11/2019 -« Last updated: 07/31/2019

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. SCHOOL NAME WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

(Select name from the drop down menu)

al. Popular School Name (No response)
(Optional)

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of BUFFALO BOE Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

Please select the correct authorizer as of
June 30, 2019 or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Buffalo

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 08/2004
e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2004
INSTRUCTION
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

To challenge the status quo, to encourage people to think differently about their situation in life. We do
this through assuring that there are high levels of learning, by creating a safe and caring environment,
and promoting community involvement in order to prepare students for a successful secondary
experience.

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools
only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements
(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s
mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The
design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be
served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems.

Variable 1 Balanced Literacy: Westminster is committed to a model of
balanced literacy. In primary grades, this includes read
aloud, guided reading, shared reading, interactive writing,
shared writing, Reading Workshop, Writing Workshop,
phonics and word study. Students also attend library classes
in Westminster's state of the art library with the librarian and
they shop for books once per six day cycle. Students are
continuously exposed to books from the 'literary canon,"
high interest texts, and culturally responsive texts. This
programming cultivates the joy of reading and turns
students into lifelong readers who can read, write, and think
critically about the world. Extensive professional
development and site based coaching was offered
throughout the year with 19 full days of Lucy Calkins Reading
Writing Project.

Variable 2 Mathematics Instruction and Balanced Numeracy Model:
Westminster continues to invest in significant mathematics
support over the course of the charter term. In the 2017 18
school year, Westminster offered 32 mathematics
professional development and coaching for staff on the
EngageNY Modules, using data to inform instructional
practices and the practice of 'number talks'. The
continuation of 'number talks' to Westminster's math
curriculum promotes mathematical confidence, fluency, and
conceptual understanding for students in K 8. Westminster
has two math intervention teachers who support struggling
math students. The school has an extensive collection of
mathematical manipulatives that are used across grade
levels. Math instruction involves differentiated groups,
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Variable 3

Variable 4

Variable 5

problem solving, and a balance of conceptual understanding
with procedural fluency. The school also implemented IXL
Math that is layered into the school day to allow students to
master mathematical standards on an individualized basis.
The school also hosted a ultimate day of math and
concluded the event with a family math night.

Extended Day, Weekend and Evening Opportunities:
Westminster Community Charter School extends its learning
day by thirty five minutes each day to enable extra reading
and math time. There are two additional hours in the
afternoon for the many students who participate in
afterschool programming and clubs. Afterschool activities
include athletics (basketball, flag football, track, wrestling,
soccer, and Girls on the Run), the arts (school play, band,
steel drum band, violin, and choir), academics (tutoring,
homework assistance), STEM (cooking and Green Team), and
community service, among others. Additionally, the school is
open select evenings and weekends to engage families with
hands on learning, field trips to educational and cultural
institutions in Buffalo, educational evenings such as Literacy,
Math, Science, and 7 Habits Nights, and community events
such as Independent Health's Good for the Neighborhood.

Healthy Living: Westminster Community Charter School is
deeply committed to nutrition and fitness as keys to our
students' success and wellbeing. WCCS has a made from
scratch food service program that features produce from the
school's on site garden and local farms. A Fresh Fruits and
Vegetable grant offers students a chance to try two new
fruits and vegetables per week. The school features a full
gym with a rock wall and also a large outdoor park on school
grounds. Throughout the year, the Independent Health
Foundation hosts Good for the Neighborhood programs at
Westminster, attended by over 600 community members in
the 2017 18 school year. Kaleida Health has an on site clinic
with a nurse and full time social worker. The school also hired
a full time social workin in 2017 to provide additional support
to students. WCCS partners with University of Buffalo School
of Dental Medicine to offer free dental services to students.
Through a cooking club, students learn to prepare healthy
dishes from around the world. The school has partnered with
African Fresh Fruits and Vegetables and a mobile market
provided by Massachusetts Avenue Project to provide a
farmers market of fresh produce weekly, all year, to families
of the school and community.

Technology: Westminster Community Charter School
integrates technology into its curriculum and instruction.
Every student in grades 3 8 has a Chromebook; each
classroom in grades K 2 has an iPad cart. The library has a
technology center where students take technology classes.
Students can participate in technology and science clubs.
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Variable 6

Variable 7

Variable 8

Variable 9

Westminster has an ongoing partnership with the University
of Buffalo for a Science, Technology, Engineering and Math
(STEM) program where the university students provide
various STEM lessons and activities at Westminster and on
their University campus. Additionally, M&T Bank technology
employees run a Coding Club for middle school students with
a beginner and advanced classes.

Special Classes: Part of Westminster Community Charter
School's commitment to a holistic education includes special
classes. Students take art, Spanish, music, band, physical
education, technology and library. These classes often
reinforce classroom learning. All special area classes meet
existing state standards. Moreover, these classes provide
students the opportunity to build new knowledge, develop
interests, explore their cultures and others, and hone critical
thinking skills necessary for lifelong success.

Academic and Instructional Support: To promote academic
achievement, Westminster Community Charter School offers
many academic and instructional supports. A full time ELA
Instructional Coach provides in classroom support, a project
coordinator works closely with administration to support
student achievement, three dedicated math intervention
teachers and three reading intervention teachers. These
teachers push into classrooms and pull small Tier 2 and Tier
3 intervention groups, using assessment data to create
groupings. In their small groups, the intervention specialists
use frequent data collection and progress monitoring,
aligned to state standards, to promote growth. Additionally,
across grade levels, students split into groups for Response
to Intervention (RTI) blocks, when students work with
classroom, special education, and intervention teachers on
reading and math.

Staff Development: Westminster Community Charter School
offers summer training for all teachers including grade level
ELA and Math, Science, and Social Studies. Each summer
training includes reviewing each unit and its alignment to
NYS Standards, creating assessments for units and beginning
with the end in mind to refine each individual lesson. Social
studies standards will be incorporated into Reading and
Writing Workshops. A new initiative this year through
Harvard's Graduate School of Education, Data Wise, supports
educators in using collaborative data inquiry to drive
continuous improvement of teaching and learning for all
students. Throughout the year, more than 51 professional
development sessions were offered, run by Teachers College,
University of Rochester, a NYS EngageNY curriculum writer,
Greg Tang, Harvard and school leadership.

Community Partnerships: Westminster Community Charter
School has the support of M&T Bank for over 25 years. M&T's
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Variable 10

Need additional space for

variables

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED
ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19
SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

j- TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT
ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

support includes in kind gifts, student mentors, management
assistance, professional development, and connections to
other institutions within the Buffalo area who can further
contribute to providing excellent educational opportunities to
students. Additionally, Westminster Community Charter
School is one of four schools within Buffalo Promise
Neighborhood (BPN). This federal grant is geared to develop
cradle to career opportunities for students and their families
within the surrounding community. This support includes
collaboration with the other three member schools. It also
includes the 2Gen program, an initiative that offers career,
financial, parenting, and educational support to families.

This year, Westminster Community Charter School has
partnered with Attuned Education Partners to improve
implementation of the instruction and school culture
elements of its strategic plan. A focus on providing deep and
on going instructional capacity, building supports focused on
ELA and math planning and implementation and data driven
instruction plus supporting the design, development,
deployment and refinement of high quality instructional
systems, with a focus on strengthening the school's efficacy
in analyzing interim data and student work.

No

http://www.westminsterccs.orqg/

550

550

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program

students)
Check all that apply

Grades Served

K. 12,3,45,6,7,8
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11. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No

WITH A CHARTER OR

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT

ORGANIZATION?

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-207?

School Site 1 (Primary)

ml. SCHOOL SITES

No, just one site.

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Physical Address

Site 1

Phone Number

District/CSD

Buffalo

6/9

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming year
(K5,609, etc.)

K8

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

N/A



mla. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School

Leader Robert Ross

Operati
onal Laura Ferrino
Leader

Complia
nce Laura Ferrino
Contact

Complai
nt Robert Ross
Contact

DASA
Coordin LaMonica Harris
ator

Phone
Contact
for After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

Robert Ross

m1lb. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space
located) space or in private
space?

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109223595/yFPTXS6fVy/

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109223595/nBJtmgxAKU/

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR

719



nl. Were there any revisions to No
the school’s charter during the
2018-19 school year? (Please
include approved or pending
material and non-material

charter revisions).

ATTESTATION

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report.

Name Pamela Hokanson
Position President

Phone/Extension _

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board
President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter,
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We
understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been
deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our
charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on

your mobile device to sigh your name).

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

fstont Koo
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date 2019/07/31

Thank you.
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612712019 Facilities Planning - Building Inspection - PUBLIC SCHOOL #68
If 'yes’, indicate ownership of system (select one):
© Public owned

School owned
= i
= Sectofg o

e Specify.
1.Gene e‘] In ormatlon

2. Non-Conformance
3. Inspector information

4. Indicate the ownership of this facility

Leased
© Owned

5. Does the District lease the building or spaces within the building to others?

6. What is the current gross square footage of this facility?

nearest whole ten feet: 75413

7. If this Facility is vacant, skip the remaining questions and go to Section #2 Non-Conformance
and report any non-conformances for Items #25A-1 through #26A-3

8. If this facility is used for instruction, complete (a) - (d); otherwise go to question 9.

a. Fire drills were held in accordance with section 807 of the Education Law and F405 and
403.5.4 of the NYS uniform code supplement of the International Fire Code

b. Average time to evacuate facility was:

2 minutes 5 seconds

¢. Arson and fire prevention instruction was provided in accordance with section 808 of the
Education Law (revised 9/1/05) which requires every school in New York State to provide a
minimum of 45 minutes of instruction in arson, fire prevention, injury prevention, and life
safety for each month school is in session.

https://eservices.nysed. gov/facilities/fsfinspection/42264

29












6/27/2019 Facilities Planning - Building Inspection - PUBLIC SCHOOL #68

PART Il - B

item Non-Conf Date Corrected Date Reinspected
13A-2
13B-2
14A-2 E
14B-2
14C-2 W
14D-1
14E-1 B
15A-2 5/15/19 5/15/19
15B-1 O
15C-2
15D-2 5/15/19 5/15/19
15E-1 7
16A-2
16B-2 i
16C-2
16D-2
17A-3
17B-2
17C-2 .
17D-2 W
17E-1 B
17F-3
17G-1 s
17H-2
171-2 C
17)1
17K-1 »
17L-1 =
18A-2

hitps://eservices nysed.gov/facilities/fsfingpection/42264






6/27/2019 Facilities Planning - Building Inspection - PUBLIC SCHOOL #68

If any additional nonconformances are observed, check item 25A-3 and list Code section in notes
section below.

I= Sections

1. General Information

2. Non-Conformance Inspector,

- I%e'%tg’gelc fg,!’ aa'st B&en provided with a copy of the previous year's school fire safety report:

Initial Inspector

Registry # *

After typing in the registry number, we will attempt £o locate this inspector In our system, and populate the fields below automaticaliy if an
Inspectar Is found with this registry #.

First Name *

PATRICK

Last Name *

LEWIS

Telephone # *

Email *

Building Administrator

Please enter the name, address, and telephone # of the Building Administrator (or Designee) that was
responsible for monitoring this inspection.

First Name *

https:/leservices nysed.gov/facilities/s/inspection/42264

89












Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link

Last updated: 07/29/2019

WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of BUFFALO BOE Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)
(For technical reasons, please re select

authorizer name from the drop down
menu).

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT https://data.nysed.qgov/profile.php?instid=800000057945
CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link
to the most recent New York
State School Report Card for the
charter school (See
https://reportcards.nysed.govy/).
(Charter schools completing year
one will not yet have a School
Report Card or link to one. Please

type "URL is not available" in the
space provided.)
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E Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

Created: 10/08/2019 -« Last updated: 10/30/2019

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided.
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st.

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by
November 1st.

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress available. If/when
Toward Attainment of available, Describe
Goal Efforts School Will
Take If Goal Is Not
Met

Westminster
Community Charter
School's proficiency
was 22% while
Buffalo achieved
25%. Westminster's
proficiency improved
from 19% in 17 18.
The school partnered
with Attuned
Education in 17 18
and implemented the
strategic planin 18
19. for the 19 20
school year, Attuned
Chief Schools Officer
is leading year 2 of
the strategic plan
focused on
curriculum and
assessment and

Aggregate ELA student culture.
Academ proficiency for grades Rigorous and
ic Goal 3 8 will perform at or NYSED Not Met differentiated deep
1 above the Buffalo and on going

district instructional capacity

building focused on
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Academ
ic Goal
2

Aggregate Math

proficiency for grades

3 8 will perform at or NYSED
above the Buffalo

district

2/11

Not Met

ELA and math
planning,
implementation and
data driven
instruction. A tutoring
program, additional
AlIS staff, two teacher
PD trainings built into
the instructional
calendar, an
Instructional Coach,
Harvard Data Wise
training and protocols
and focused interim
assessments (STAR
Reading, Power
Standards) have
been implemented in
19 20 school year.

Westminster
Community Charter
School's proficiency
was 19% while
Buffalo achieved
21%. Westminster's
proficiency improved
from 16% in 17 18.
The school partnered
with Attuned
Education in 17 18
and implemented the
strategic planin 18
19. for the 19 20
school year, Attuned
Chief Schools Officer
is leading year 2 of
the strategic plan
focused on
curriculum and
assessment and
student culture.
Rigorous and
differentiated deep
and on going
instructional capacity
building focused on
ELA and math
planning,
implementation and
data driven
instruction. A tutoring
program, additional



Academ
ic Goal
3

Academ
ic Goal
4

Aggregate ELA
proficiency for
students enrolled in
at least their second
year in grades 3 8
will perform at or
above Buffalo grades
3 8 district
proficiency

Aggregate Math
proficiency for
students enrolled in
at least their second
year in grades 3 8
will perform at or
above Buffalo grades
3 8 District
proficiency

Aggregate subgroup

NYSED

NYSED

3/11

Met

Met

AlIS staff, two teacher
PD trainings built into
the instructional
calendar, an
Instructional Coach,
Harvard Data Wise
training and protocols
and focused interim
assessments (IXL
Math, Power
Standards) have
been implemented in
19 20 school year.

Westminster
Community Charter
School's proficiency
for students enrolled
in at least their
second year in
grades 3 8 was 22%.
Buffalo performed at
21%

Westminster
Community Charter
School's proficiency
for students enrolled
in at least their
second year in
grades 3 8 was 19%.
Buffalo 3 8
performed at 17%

Westminster
Community Charter
School's proficiency
was 21% while
Buffalo achieved
20%. Westminster's
proficiency improved
from 18% in 17 18.
The school partnered
with Attuned
Education in 17 18
and implemented the
strategic plan in 18
19. for the 19 20
school year, Attuned
Chief Schools Officer
is leading year 2 of
the strategic plan
focused on
curriculum and



Academ
ic Goal
5

Academ
ic Goal
6

students in ELA that
are Economically
, . NYSED
Disadvantaged will
perform at or above
the Buffalo district

Met

Aggregate subgroup
students in Math that
are Economically
Disadvantaged will
perform at or above
the Buffalo district

NYSED Met

4/11

assessment and
student culture.
Rigorous and
differentiated deep
and on going
instructional capacity
building focused on
ELA and math
planning,
implementation and
data driven
instruction. A tutoring
program, additional
AlIS staff, two teacher
PD trainings built into
the instructional
calendar, an
Instructional Coach,
Harvard Data Wise
training and protocols
and focused interim
assessments have
been implemented in
19 20 school year.

Westminster
Community Charter
School's proficiency
was 19% while
Buffalo achieved
17%. Westminster's
proficiency improved
from 15% in 17 18.
The school partnered
with Attuned
Education in 17 18
and implemented the
strategic plan in 18
19. for the 19 20
school year, Attuned
Chief Schools Officer
is leading year 2 of
the strategic plan
focused on
curriculum and
assessment and
student culture.
Rigorous and
differentiated deep
and on going
instructional capacity
building focused on
ELA and math



Academ
ic Goal
7

ELA grade level
proficiency will
perform at or above
the Buffalo district

NYSED

5/11

Not Met

planning,
implementation and
data driven
instruction. A tutoring
program, additional
AlS staff, two teacher
PD trainings built into
the instructional
calendar, an
Instructional Coach,
Harvard Data Wise
training and protocols
and focused interim
assessments have
been implemented in
19 20 school year.

Westminster and
Buffalo by grade

Grade 3 19% 32%
(13)

Grade 4 26% 27%
Grade 5 12% 18%
Grade 6 18% 25%
Grade 7 17% 18%
Grade 8 42% 27% 15

(1)
(6)
(7)
(1)

Rigor and
differentiation by
grade, consistent
weekly data driven
grade level PLC's,
systems to maximum
the impact of interim
assessment data and
develop, implement,
and monitor a robust
observation and
feedback system that
prioritizes sustainable
coaching loads,
frequent feedback,
and sticking with an
action step until
mastery.

Westminster and
Buffalo by grade

Grade 3 25% 28% (3)
Grade 4 33% 21% 12
Grade 5 10% 20%



Math grade level
proficiency will
perform at or above
the Buffalo district.

Academ
ic Goal
8

Academ
ic Goal
9

Academ
ic Goal
10

2. Do have more academic goals
to add?

3. Do have more academic goals
to add?

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

NYSED

No

No

Organizational Goal Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

School Leadership

The school has an
effective school

6/11

Met or Not Met

(10)

Grade 6 6% 22% (16)
Grade 7 13% 16% (3)
Grade 8 27% 17% 10

Rigor and
differentiation by
grade, consistent
weekly data driven
grade level PLC's,
systems to maximum
the impact of interim
assessment data and
develop, implement,
and monitor a robust
observation and
feedback system that
prioritizes sustainable
coaching loads,
frequent feedback,
and sticking with an
action step until
mastery.

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will

Take



leadership team that
obtains staff
commitment to a
clearly defined
mission and set of

Charter Board

i Partners
goals, allowing for Attuned Education
continued Partners

improvement in
student learning.

Roles and
responsibilities for
leaders, staff,
management and
board members are

The Board of Trustees
meets monthly and
regularly monitors
the progress of its
students, teachers
and engagement

Org clearly defined. with parents and Met
Goal 1 .
families.
The school has clear
and well established
communication Board has

systems and
decision making
processes in place
which ensure
effective
communication
across the school.

The school
successfully recruits,

committees that
monitor academic,
governance, human
resources and school
culture. The board
problem solves and
plans for school wide
growth

hires, and retains key
personnel and makes
decisions, when
warranted, to remove
ineffective staff
members.

Professional Climate

The school is fully
staffed with high
quality personnel to
meet all educational
and operational
needs.

The school has
established
structures for
frequent
collaboration among
teachers.

Teacher surveys

Daily Teacher
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Org
Goal 2

Org
Goal 3

The school ensures
that staff has
requisite skills,
expertise and
professional
development
necessary to meet
student needs.

The school has
systems to monitor
and maintain
organizational and
instructional quality,
including a formal
process for teacher
evaluation geared
toward improving

instructional practice.

The school has

mechanisms to solicit

teacher feedback
and gauge teacher
satisfaction.

Contractual
Relationships

The board of trustees

and school
leadership establish
effective working
relationships with
M&T Bank

Changes in the
school's charter
managment or
comprehensive
service provider
contract comply with
required charter
amendment
procedures

The school monitors
the efficacy of
contracted service
providers or partners

Behavior
Management and

observations, formal
teacher APPR

PDs offered in the
summer and
throughout the year

Mentor teacher
program

MOU's are in place
with M&T Bank and
Buffalo Public School
System

Ongoing monitoring

of contract
compliance

8/11

Met

Met



Org
Goal 4

Org
Goal 5

Org
Goal 6

Safety

Westminster has a
clear approach to
behavior
management, safe
and systems in place
to ensure the
environment is free
from harassment and
discrimination.
Classroom
environments are
conducive to learning
and generally free
from disruption

Family Engagement
and Communications

Westminster
teachers
communicate with
parents to discuss
student's strengths
and needs. The
school has a system
for responding to
parent or community
concerns, the school
shares school based
academic data with
the broader school
community to
promote
transparency and
accountability among
parents, students
and school
constituents.

Social Emotional
Supports

School leaders collect
and use data to track
the socio emotional
needs of sudents.
School leaders collect
and use data
regarding the impact
of programs

Write ups,
Suspensions

School written
conduct of behavior
policy, anti bullying
policy and school
wide expectations as
part of PBI system.

Parent Survey and
focus groups

Classroom Dojo,
weekly planners that
allow parents to 'see
what is being done
with each student'
two parent teacher
conference days,
teacher regular
communication
home. NYSED
student assessment
profiles sent home to
each child

Student referrals,
RTI, and DESSA
Comp SEL System

9/11

Met

Met

Met



designed to support
students' social and
emotional health

Org
Goal 7

Org
Goal 8

Org
Goal 9

Org
Goal 10

Org
Goal 11

Org
Goal 12

Org
Goal 13

Org
Goal 14

Org
Goal 15

Org
Goal 16

Org
Goal 17

Org
Goal 18

Org
Goal 19

Org
Goal 20

5. Do have more organizational No
goals to add?

6. FINANCIAL GOALS
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2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals

Financia . . g

| Goal 1 Financial Condition
Financia Financial

| Goal 2 Management
Financia Board Oversight and
| Goal 3 Governance
Financia Legal and

| Goal 4 Compliance
Financia

| Goal 5

Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met

Evaluate Progress

Audited Financial

Statements Met

Unmodified Audit,
monthly budgets,
surpluses, written
fiscal policies,
internal controls

Met

Board provides
competent
stewardship and
oversight. Members
have expertise in
urban education and
fiscal management.
Annual board retreat
to review and discuss
strategic priorities.

Met

Compliance record
with the state and
federal laws.
Unmodified audit for
federal programs. No
corrective action or
approval for
significant revisions
required.

Met

7. Do have more financial goals No

to add?

Thank you.

11/11

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take



ﬁ Entry 4 Expenditures per Child

Created: 07/29/2019 -« Last updated: 07/30/2019

WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

Financial Information

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures
Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enroliment.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the
Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website

at: http://www.pl2.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf.
Line 1: Total Expenditures 8028102
Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 550

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 14597
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2. Administrative Expenditures per Child
To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per

Child” first add together the following:

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses)

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must
be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the
activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also
includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program.

Notes:
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the Audit Guide
can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:

http:/www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.

Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations.

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services

Cost (Row) 783379
Line 2: Management and General Cost 913874
(Column)

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 1703253
Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End 3097

FTE student enrollment

Thank you.
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Additional Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 15, 2019 on our
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 15, 2019



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Balance Sheets

June 30,

2019

2018

Assets

Current assets:
Cash
Receivables (Note 2)
Prepaid expenses

Property and equipment, net (Note 3)

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Postemployment health care benefit obligation (Note 4)

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions

S 9,521,328

S 9,149,546

459,603 458,553
41,656 22,395
10,022,587 9,630,494
4,717,262 4,151,468

$ 14,739,849

S 13,781,962

S 410,008 S 675,484
1,756,361 1,562,589
2,166,369 2,238,073
3,284,395 3,629,313
5,450,764 5,867,386
9,289,085 7,914,576

$ 14,739,849

S 13,781,962

See accompanying notes.



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Statements of Activities

For the years ended June 30, 2019 2018
Support and revenue:
Enroliment fees:
Revenue - resident student enrollment 7,314,902 S 6,974,118
Revenue - students with disabilities 372,025 353,765
Revenue - additional state aid 150,266 -
Federal grants 866,876 959,148
State and local grants 526,390 504,347
Other income 44,676 55,687
Total support and revenue 9,275,135 8,847,065
Expenses:
Program expenses:
Regular education 6,248,153 5,744,657
Special education 955,779 894,050
Other programs 905,246 887,228
Total program expenses 8,109,178 7,525,935
Supporting services:
Management and general 643,628 738,357
Total expenses 8,752,806 8,264,292
Excess of support and revenue over expenses 522,329 582,773
Postemployment health care benefit adjustment (Note 4) 852,180 169,529
Change in net assets 1,374,509 752,302
Net assets - beginning 7,914,576 7,162,274
Net assets - ending 9,289,085 S 7,914,576

See accompanying notes.



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Administrative personnel

Instructional personnel

Non-instructional personnel
Total salaries

Salaries

Payroll taxes and employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Professional and staff development
Professional fees

Contracted services

Student and staff recruitment
Curriculum and classroom expenses
Supplies and materials

Food services

Student transportation services
Travel and conferences

Postage, printing, and copying
Insurance

Information technology

Repairs and maintenance
Occupancy

Telephone and utilities

Other

Depreciation

Total

Number
of Regular Special Other Management
Positions Education Education Programs and General Total

50 $ 316,760 $ 37,453 $ 14,344 $ 29,883 $ 398,440
61.0 2,894,735 432,353 50,666 - 3,377,754
8.0 157,382 20,208 218,584 4,992 401,166
74.0 $ 3,368,877 $ 490,014 $ 283,594 $ 34,875 $ 4,177,360
$ 3,368,877 $ 490,014 $ 283,594 S 34,875 $ 4,177,360
1,559,310 222,758 55,690 18,563 1,856,321
362,959 51,851 12,963 4,321 432,094
115,049 19,904 83,772 - 218,725
- - - 17,500 17,500
- 92,074 - 392,380 484,454
- - - 921 921
66,629 8,165 6,859 - 81,653
75,878 6,492 11,362 7,710 101,442
- - 318,608 - 318,608
- - 23,596 - 23,596
14,543 1,074 477 3,800 19,894
7,007 887 197 869 8,960
- - - 73,817 73,817
61,433 6,143 1,536 7,679 76,791
242,520 19,401 35,570 25,869 323,360
- - - 20,758 20,758
52,376 10,774 19,061 663 82,874
20,695 2,172 7,832 1,810 32,509
5,947,276 931,709 861,117 611,535 8,351,637
300,877 24,070 44,129 32,093 401,169
$ 6,248,153 $§ 955,779 $ 905,246 S 643,628 $ 8,752,806

See accompanying notes.



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Administrative personnel

Instructional personnel

Non-instructional personnel
Total salaries

Salaries

Payroll taxes and employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Professional and staff development
Professional fees

Contracted services

Student and staff recruitment
Curriculum and classroom expenses
Supplies and materials

Food services

Student transportation services
Travel and conferences

Postage, printing, and copying
Insurance

Information technology

Repairs and maintenance
Occupancy

Telephone and utilities

Other

Depreciation

Total

Number
of Regular Special Other Management
Positions  Education Education Programs and General Total

50 $ 295826 $ 34,978 ¢ 13396 $ 27,908 $ 372,108
57.0 2,551,614 381,105 44,660 - 2,977,379
8.0 135,373 17,382 201,773 4,294 358,822
70.0 $ 2,982,813 S 433,465 S 259,829 $ 32,202 S 3,708,309
$ 2,982,813 $ 433,465 $ 259,829 S 32,202 S 3,708,309
1,479,005 214,930 52,310 15,968 1,762,213
300,902 42,986 10,746 3,582 358,216
94,739 16,390 68,983 - 180,112
- - - 19,070 19,070
- 100,317 - 485,496 585,813
- - - 7,812 7,812
105,099 12,880 10,819 - 128,798
70,909 6,067 10,617 7,205 94,798
- - 335,139 - 335,139
- - 27,315 - 27,315
17,956 1,326 590 4,692 24,564
8,960 1,134 252 1,111 11,457
- - - 77,641 77,641
64,398 6,440 1,610 8,050 80,498
255,928 20,474 37,536 27,299 341,237
- - - 16,281 16,281
58,288 11,990 21,212 738 92,228
36,733 4,137 10,827 2,525 54,222
5,475,730 872,536 847,785 709,672 7,905,723
268,927 21,514 39,443 28,685 358,569
S 5,744,657 S 894,050 $ 887,228 S 738,357 $ 8,264,292

See accompanying notes.



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended June 30, 2019 2018
Operating activities:
Cash received from enrollment fees 7,630,303 S 7,606,434
Cash received from federal, state and local grants 1,595,382 1,747,739
Cash received from other sources 48,400 52,980
Payments to employees for services and benefits (5,756,320) (5,796,761)
Payments to vendors and suppliers (2,179,020) (1,087,785)
Net operating activities 1,338,745 2,522,607
Investing activities:
Property and equipment expenditures (966,963) (44,635)
Net change in cash 371,782 2,477,972
Cash - beginning 9,149,546 6,671,574
Cash - ending 9,521,328 $ 9,149,546
See accompanying notes. 7



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Organization and Purpose:

Westminster Community Charter School (the School) is a
conversion charter school in the City of Buffalo, New York (the
City). The School, which previously existed as a public school
in the City of Buffalo School District (the District), was
chartered by the District in 2004. As the authorizing
organization, the District retains ongoing responsibility for
oversight and evaluation of the School. The School currently
offers classes from kindergarten through grade 8 and has
been chartered through 2021, at which time it must apply to
renew its charter for another term.

The School seeks to create and maintain a successful
partnership between students and their parents, staff, the
community and private industry. In order to achieve success,
strong emphasis is placed on effective leadership, high
expectations, parental involvement and the communication of
clear goals in an orderly school climate.

M&T Bank (the Bank) is an institutional partner of the School
with representatives serving on the School’s Board of
Trustees.

Subsequent Events:

Management has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through October 15, 2019,
the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Management and Operations:

Pursuant to a memorandum of understanding (MOU)
between the School and the District, the District, the Bank,
and Westminster Foundation dba Buffalo Promise
Neighborhood will each continue to provide the School with
certain services and resources in support of its mission.

The School entered into a Business Services Agreement (the
Agreement) with the Bank to provide certain management
operations, including accounting, financial reporting, and
other general management consulting and support. Pursuant
to the Agreement, the Bank is paid in the subsequent year for
services provided in any year in which the School has ended
the year with an accumulated non-designated cash operating
surplus. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the
School recognized expenses of $375,297 and $464,449 to the
Bank for services provided under the Agreement.

Cash:

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the School to
concentrations of credit risk, since it may exceed insured
limits at various times throughout the year.

Receivables:

Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects
to collect from outstanding balances. Balances that are
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to bad debts expense
and a credit to accounts receivable. An allowance for
doubtful accounts is considered unnecessary by management
because all significant amounts deemed uncollectible are
written off each year.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method over estimated useful asset lives. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations as incurred; significant
improvements are capitalized.



Pursuant to the MOU, the right to use the school building and
grounds was transferred from the District to the School.
However, the District retains all rights, title and interest in the
property, including all current and future non-removable
improvements, and the District agrees to pay the first $50,000
in annual facilities-related services throughout the term of the
charter. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the
total cost of facilities-related services due to the District was
approximately $300,000 and $298,000. At the discretion of
the School’s Board, certain capital improvements and repair
costs are borne by the School.

The School has the use of all District furnishings, books,
supplies and equipment existing at the facility at the time of
its conversion from a public school operated by the District
without charge. To the extent such assets are still in use at
the end of the term of the charter, they will be returned to
the District.

The MOU also stipulates that the District will provide
textbooks, library materials, computer hardware and
software, and certain other services to the same extent as
provided to nonpublic schools. The value of the services and
materials provided by the District recorded in these financial
statements as revenue and expense totaled $71,002 and
$65,398 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Enrollment Fees:

The School is reimbursed based on the approved operating
expense per pupil of the public-school district in which the
student resides. The amount received each year from the
resident district is the product of the approved operating
expense per pupil and the full-time equivalent enrollment of
the students in the School residing in the district. The School’s
enrollment fees are received primarily from the Board of
Education for the District.

The District adjusted the enrollment fee calculation for
students with disabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019. It
has not been determined if this change will affect special
education fees the District paid to the School for previous
years.

In June 2019, all New York State charter schools serving
students in the fiscal 2019 school year received additional
state aid. The additional aid received by each school was
based on the number of students served and was paid directly
from the New York State Department of Education.
Additional aid totaling $150,266 is included as enrollment fees
revenue on the accompanying statement of activities for the
year ended June 30, 2019. No additional state aid was
received for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Grants:

The School is the recipient of awards and reimbursements
from federal, state and local sources. The awards and
reimbursements are subject to various compliance and
financial audits by the funding sources. Management believes
no significant adjustments are necessary to recognized
amounts.

Transportation:

The District provides the School with certain transportation
services without cost. The value of these services has not
been recorded in these financial statements.

Tax Status:

The School is a 501(c)(3) organization exempt from taxation
under §501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Functional Expense Allocation:

The School’s costs of providing its various programs and
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs
have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited. These costs include salaries and benefits
which are allocated based on estimates of time and effort,
and depreciation, office expenses, and repairs and
maintenance which are allocated based on management’s
estimate of program benefit.

Reclassifications:
The 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to

conform with the presentation adopted in 2019.

2. Receivables:

2019 2018
Grants S 458,216 S 423,094
Enrollment fees - 30,350
Other 1,387 5,109
$ 459,603 S 458,553




3. Property and Equipment:

2019 2018
Building and improvements $ 1,353,668 S 1,183,212
Furniture and equipment 7,219,203 6,422,696
8,572,871 7,605,908
Less accumulated depreciation 3,855,609 3,454,440

$ 4,717,262 S 4,151,468

4. Postemployment Health Care Benefits:

The School provides postemployment health care benefits to
eligible employees. The benefits are partially contributory for
some participants. The School’s policy is to fund these
benefits as paid.

The status of the postemployment health care benefit plan as
of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as
follows:

2019 2018
Accumulated postemployment benefit
obligation (APBO) $ 3,284,395 S 3,629,313
Accrued postemployment health
benefits $ 3,284,395 S 3,629,313
Accumulated adjustment to
unrestricted net assets $ 3,807,705 S 2,955,525
Benefit cost $ 507,262 S 524,204
2019 2018
Weighted average assumptions used to
determine benefit obligation:
Annual health care premium
increases 5.0-6.5% 5.0-6.5%
Discount rate 4.0% 4.3%
Weighted-average assumptions used to
determine periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 4.3% 4.0%
Expected future benefit payments:
2020 S 3,098
2021 11,806
2022 21,843
2023 29,788
2024 39,485
2025-2029 275,088
S 381,108

5. Retirement Plans:

The School participates in the New York State Teachers’
Retirement System (TRS) and the New York State and Local
Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) (the Systems), which are
cost-sharing multiple employer, public employee retirement
systems. The Systems offer a wide range of plans and benefits
which are related to years of service and final average salary,
vesting of retirement benefits, death and disability.

New York State Teachers’ Retirement System:

TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’
Retirement Board and provides benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York.
TRS issues a publicly available financial report that contains
financial statements and required supplementary information.
The report may be obtained from TRS at www.nystrs.org.

New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System:

ERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law governs obligations of employers and employees
to contribute and provide benefits to employees. ERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information.
This report may be obtained from ERS at
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire.

Funding Policies:

No employee contribution is required for those whose service
began prior to July 1976. The Systems require employee
contributions of 3% of salary for the first 10 years of service
for those employees who joined the Systems from July 1976
through December 2009. Participants whose service began on
or after January 1, 2010 through March 31, 2012 are required
to contribute 3% (ERS) or 3.5% (TRS) of compensation
throughout their active membership in the Systems.
Participants whose service began on or after April 1, 2012 are
required to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6%
each year, based on their level of compensation.

For ERS, the Comptroller annually certifies the rates used,
expressed as a percentage of the wages of participants, to
compute the contributions required to be made by employers
to the pension accumulation fund. The rate ranged from 9.3%
to 15.8% for 2019 and 9.3% to 15.9% for 2018, dependent on
the participant’s tier. Required contributions for ERS were
$27,584 and $30,151 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018.

10



Pursuant to Article 11 of Education Law, rates are established
annually for TRS by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement
Board at an actuarially determined rate. The rate is 10.62% of
the annual covered payroll for the year ended June 30, 2019,
and 9.80% for the year ended June 30, 2018. The required
contributions for TRS were $404,510 and $328,065 for the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

6. Financial Assets Available for Operations:

The School’s primary sources of financial assets are
enrollment fees and grants which are acquired throughout the
year to help meet the School’s cash needs for general
expenditures.

The School’s financial assets available within one year of the
balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general
expenditures consist of the following at June 30, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018
Cash $ 9,521,328 S 9,149,546
Receivables 459,603 458,553

$ 9,980,931 $ 9,608,099

11



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Additional Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended June 30, 2019

CFDA Grantor
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Passed through New York State Education Department:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021-19-4272 S 295,565
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 0147-19-4272 33,158
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 0147-18-4272 10,460
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.424 0204-19-4272 16,852
Total U.S. Department of Education 356,035
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through New York State Education Department:
Child Nutrition Cluster
School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 153,973
National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 302,681
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 456,654
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 0004-19-0006 26,203
Passed through New York State Office of General Services:
National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 16,851
Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants Limited Availability 10.579 N/A 11,133
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 510,841
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards S 866,876
See accompanying notes. 12



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards presents the activity of all federal award programs
administered by Westminster Community Charter School (the
School), an entity as defined in Note 1 to the School’s financial
statements. Federal awards received directly from federal
agencies, as well as federal awards passed through from other
governmental agencies, are included on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Basis of Accounting:

The amounts reported as federal expenditures generally were
obtained from the appropriate federal financial reports for
the applicable programs and periods. The amounts reported
in these federal financial reports are prepared from records
maintained for each program, which are periodically
reconciled with the School’s financial reporting system. The
federal expenditures are recorded on an accrual basis.

Indirect Costs:

The School typically does not allocate indirect costs to Federal
programs and as such the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
permitted by the Uniform Guidance is not applicable.

Non-monetary Federal Program:

The School is the recipient of federal award programs that do
not result in cash receipts or disbursements, termed “non-
monetary programs.” During the year ended June 30, 2019,
the School used $27,984 worth of commodities under the
Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants Limited Availability
program (CFDA Number 10.579) and the National School
Lunch Program (CFDA Number 10.555).

13






Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

October 15, 2019
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the School’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 15, 2019
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Section I. Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified?

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified?
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

accordance with section 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs:

Unmodified

No
None reported

No

No
None reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
No
Name of Federal Program or Cluster CFDA # Amount
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 S 153,973
National School Lunch Program 10.555 319,532
S 473,505
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Yes

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
Section II. Financial Statement Findings
No matters were reported.

Section lll. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.

18



Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs
Last updated: 11/01/2019

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the
items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action
plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the
report); etc.

Section Heading

1. Management Letter

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119130800/8mMIlunnVv3/

Explanation for not uploading (No response)
the Management Letter.

2. Form 990

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading Extension filed
the Form 990.

3. Federal Single Audit

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements.

(No response)
Explanation for not uploading Not required as the school did not expend federal funds

the Federal Single Audit. greater than $750,000 threshold

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading NA
the procedure report.

1/2



5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the
escrow account per school is $100,000.

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading NA
the Escrow evidence.

6. Corrective Action Plan

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must
include:

a. The person responsible

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken
c. Description of the action taken

d. Evidence of implementation (if available)

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading NA

the Corrective Action Plan.
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Adjustments

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The most
significant adjustment recognized during the audit was:

= Decrease postemployment benefit obligation - $344,918

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated October __, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with
us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in
the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Additional Information

With respect to the additional information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquires of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the additional information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of
the School and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information
Last updated: 10/30/2019

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information
requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined
file.

WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact
Name Email Phone

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm

F_ 16

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced

Sarah Hopkins

financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with
Person Address Firm

1/1



New York State Education Department

Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
Board of Regents

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
that particular item

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate
additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enroliment would
reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.




Westminster Community Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-20

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This wm populate the data in row 10.

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
Total Revenue 8,076,024 372,261 578,000 - 10,500 9,036,785
Total Expenses 5,632,951 982,783 1,232,905 - 1,108,585 9,032,724
Net Income 2,443,073 (610,522) (654,905) - (1,098,085) 4,061
Actual Student Enrollment 495 50 -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

REGULAR
EDUCATION

SPECIAL
EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT &
GENERAL

OTHER

FUNDRAISING

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate

District of Location $13,494.00

7,354,230

314,261

7,668,491

School District 2 (Enter Name)

School District 3 (Enter Name)

School District 4 (Enter Name)

School District 5 (Enter Name)

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus

Other
Other State Revenue

7,354,230 314,261 7,668,491

325,000

325,000

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING

7,679,230 314,261 7,993,491

IDEA Special Needs - 58,000 - - - 58,000
Title | 302,118 - - - - 302,118
Title Funding - Other 34,676 - - - - 34,676
School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - 552,000 - - 552,000
Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -
Other Federal Revenue - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 336,794 58,000 552,000 946,794
LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - - - - -
Erate Reimbursement - - - - - -
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - - 8,500 8,500
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - -
Food Service (Income from meals) - - 13,500 - - 13,500
Text Book 35,000 - - - - 35,000
Other Local Revenue 25,000 - 12,500 - 2,000 39,500
TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 60,000 26,000 10,500 96,500

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions

Executive Management 1.00 47,149 13,648 12,408 - 50,871 124,076
Instructional Management 1.00 76,348 6,863 2,574 - - 85,785
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 2.00 160,024 8,872 8,908 - - 177,804




Westminster Community Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-20

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enrollment
Total Paid Student Enroliment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
8,076,024 372,261 578,000 10,500 9,036,785
5,632,951 982,783 1,232,905 1,108,585 9,032,724
2,443,073 (610,522) (654,905) (1,098,085) 4,061

495 50 -
545 = 545

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL
CFO / Director of Finance = = = - - -
Operation / Business Manager = = - - - -
Administrative Staff 3.00 - 115,014 115,014
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 283,521 29,383 23,890 165,885 502,679
INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular 33.00 1,956,600 39,931 - 1,996,531
Teachers - SPED 7.00 - 406,413 - - 406,413
Substitute Teachers 1.50 29,858 3,318 - - 33,176
Teaching Assistants 4.00 90,129 11,712 - - 101,841
Specialty Teachers 15.00 934,044 44,013 - - 978,057
Aides 9.00 162,343 21,084 - - 183,427
Therapists & Counselors 3.00 142,903 59,895 5,411 - 208,209
Other - -
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 3,315,877 546,435 45,342 3,907,654
NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse = = - - - -
Librarian = = - = - -
Custodian - - - - 5 -
Security 1.00 14,280 13,860 13,860 - 42,000
Other 7.00 - - 205,000 - 205,000
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL | s 14,280 13,860 218,860 247,000
SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 3,613,678 589,678 288,002 165,885 4,657,333
PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 284,814 46,397 22,684 13,119 367,014
Fringe / Employee Benefits 938,721 144,419 72,209 48,140 1,203,489
Retirement / Pension 341,234 52,497 26,249 17,498 437,478
TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,564,769 243,313 121,142 78,757 2,007,981
TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 5,178,447 832,991 409,234 244,642 6,665,314
CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit - - - 17,250 17,250
Legal - - - 7,500 7,500
Management Company Fee = = = 420,500 420,500
Nurse Services o = ° - -
Food Service / School Lunch = = - - -
Payroll Services = - - 18,000 18,000
Special Ed Services - 88,000 - - 88,000
Titlement Services (i e. Title 1) = = - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 30,000 2,500 - 317,500 350,000
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 30,000 90,500 780,750 901,250

SCHOOL OPERATIONS




Westminster Community Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-20

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This wm populate the data in row 10.

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL

Total Revenue 8,076,024 372,261 578,000 - 10,500 9,036,785

Total Expenses 5,632,951 982,783 1,232,905 - 1,108,585 9,032,724

Net Income 2,443,073 (610,522) (654,905) - (1,098,085) 4,061

Actual Student Enrollment 495 50 -

Total Paid Student Enroliment 545 - 545

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL

Board Expenses = - = = - -

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 21,100 = 2,678 - - 23,778

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 3,000 - - - 3,000

Textbooks / Workbooks 31,500 3,500 - - - 35,000

Supplies & Materials other 50,000 5,000 = - - 55,000

Equipment / Furniture 31,200 2,800 = - - 34,000

Telephone 644 211 120 - 2,275 3,250

Technology 40,788 4,712 1,184 - 6,366 53,050

Student Testing & Assessment 11,245 1,533 - - - 12,778

Field Trips 4,100 350 550 - - 5,000

Transportation (student) 15,900 2,300 1,800 - - 20,000

Student Services - other 8,000 1,000 68,000 - - 77,000

Office Expense 2,547 566 1,839 - 9,198 14,150

Staff Development 127,925 22,575 - - - 150,500

Staff Recruitment 500 250 - - 750 1,500

Student Recruitment / Marketing 900 1,000 - - 1,600 3,500

School Meals / Lunch - - 317,500 - - 317,500

Travel (Staff) 8,055 995 = - - 9,050

Fundraising = = = = = =

Other - - 1,000 - 21,110 22,110

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 354,404 49,792 394,671 41,299 840,166
FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Insurance = = = = - 75,500

Janitorial = - = = - =

Building and Land Rent / Lease = = = - 24,794 24,794

Repairs & Maintenance - - 5,000 - 11,200 16,200

Equipment / Furniture = = = o - -

Security 15,000 2,000 2,500 - 500 20,000

Utilities 55,100 7,500 16,500 - 5,400 84,500

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - 405,000 - - 405,000

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

District of Location

School District 2 (Enter Name)
School District 3 (Enter Name)
School District 4 (Enter Name)
School District 5 (Enter Name)

5,632,951

982,783

1,232,905

1,108,585

9,032,724

REGULAR
EDUCATION

SPECIAL
EDUCATION

TOTAL
ENROLLED

545




Westminster Community Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-20

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

TOTAL ENROLLMENT
REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enrollment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHE:" FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
8,076,024 372,261 578,000 10,500 9,036,785
5,632,951 982,783 1,232,905 1,108,585 9,032,724
2,443,073 (610,522) (654,905) (1,098,085) 4,061

495 50 -
545 = 545

REGULAR
EDUCATION

PROGRAM SERVICES

SPECIAL
EDUCATION

OTHER

SUPPORT SERVICES

FUNDRAISING

MANAGEMENT &
GENERAL




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

BPS Community School Grant Funding

Title 11 8,532 Title IV_26,144

Staff Food Service and Misc Inc

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

Dining Hall Ees and others




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when




Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

i




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member '

Name:
ﬁ(’cn@ j—-/ =

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

\/U@s Eonirste /ﬂm mumh C%Mkr b hal

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

OerentRe reserstetive

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _..No

If Yes, for each school, please prowde a descnptson of the position(s} you
hold, your responsnbllmes your salary and your start date.

Tnther oo R0 1130 ) st dede G5

-ﬂ-"':,,..-:-'—”

3. Are you a past, current, or prospectlve employee of the charter school,
education corporat:on, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (*CMQ"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an amployee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes \/ Nq

If Yés, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. '




4, Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes tc Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc. '

Date(s) Nature of Steps takento | Name of person
. financial avold a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Plgase write ‘|None” if applicabie. Do not leave|this space blank.
. 7\[;6 NCa PM(ﬁ g Lo ,f_z,;uu‘(\

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
- partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person{s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the schooi(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

\bdv‘ﬂl : -1( é/t&aé@r/@u/]

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation): '

Wesf-uw.sfer &Mﬂt/ﬂ/iy géﬁf fer g" 49‘9 [

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Badrc’ /VI embes

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the ‘education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position{s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. '

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

% Yes No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

1>/l'5'f' e,u'/fafee oF //IPT g&/f'f\/ ,Qeﬁru/
March 2017, Beawe a_ éﬂ/)vc{ MEphec— ﬁoﬂ«oc_, 20/7




4,

|dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc. '

Date(s) - Nature of | Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, . engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Please write "Nonel if Table, Do .net-teavVe[this space blank™
F 5 Bpfrral

5.

ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an_organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
dom through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”







Disclosure of Financial interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: )/ﬁ/yg C’ﬁzza

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(‘Board) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes 74 No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property fo the said entities?

____Yes _X_No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.







4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter schooi(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, efc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person

financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interestitransacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not | transaction and
' vote, did not relatio'nship to
participate in you

discussion)

Please Wrz'te__’_WLQp_pﬂcable. Do not leave|this space blank.
y _

- 5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s} operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

PLorA




Disclosure of Financial Iﬁte_rest by a Current or Proposed Board of
: Trustees Member

Name:

C:ﬁz'/,zﬂ,ﬂ&éflj/’ Logh ek,

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation): :

WWMMMZ@

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

PIEILL,

2. Are you an We of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the pOSltlon(S) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,

- education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMOQO"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charier school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes m)

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4,

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
©on (e.g., did not transaction and
S vote, did not relationship to
\ participate in you

discussion)

:,-o wrzte Wone” if applicabdlle. Do not leave|this space blank,

5.

l[dentify each individual, business, cérpor‘ation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people

.doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and

in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or .
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such orgamzation and the

-school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: _
;Ri{a; M Eisetnbeis

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Westminster (o muunity G havter Sehol

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

C hat rperson

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?

Yes No
[} \ -

-If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMOQO"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes x No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s} you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4,

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please nofe that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc. '

5.

Date(s) Nature of Stepé taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, - engaging in-
on {e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion}
Please write "\None” if applicablle. Do not leaveithis space blank.
None. | None | Nowe | None

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the schooi(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of |
Trustees Member

Name:
_JAMES OBLETZ

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school |s the only school operated by the education
corporation):

e \ \

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. premdent treasurer, parent representat:ve) -

N (A

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _)dNo

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,

- education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive

management services (‘CMQ"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which

contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;

or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling

interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans

to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,

andf/or a CMO, whether for-profi t or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
“the lease of real or personal property o the said entities?

Yes Xz No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you .in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to | Name of person

financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, ' engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you

discussion)

Please w,«ft%iﬁfe"a‘awcaiﬁ?e//ﬁo not leavelthis space blank.

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or ather relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organlzatlon and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of

Trustees Member

Name:‘%éaﬁykf\ L ‘FEL\/ ror“

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

L

2.

3.

List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(‘Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

@0&"’2& WL/imloc.r‘

Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No '

i Yes, for each school, ple'ase provide a description of the position(s) you

hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;

~or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling

interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to.contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities? :

Yes r/ No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
reSponSIblll'[leS your salary and your start date.




4,

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of perSpn

financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti | of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you

discussion)

Please write "None” if applicablle. Do not leavel|this space blank.

N~

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the

. school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

T







Entry 8 BOT Table

Created: 07/02/2019 -« Last updated: 07/31/2019

25 |

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide
information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees.

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee Position Committ  Voting Number Start End Date Board
Name on the ee Member of Terms  Date of of Meetings
and Board Affiliation Per By Served Current Current Attended
Email S Laws Term Term During
Address (Y/N) (MM/DD/Y (MM/DD/Y 2018 19
YYY) YYY)
Mrs.
Terenda
Brown Parent School 06/19/20 06/19/20
Rep Culture ¥es & 19 20 10
Mr. David
Chamberl
ain . Human
Vice 06/19/20 06/19/20
. Chair Resource Yes 1 19 20 10
Ms.
Diane
Trustee/M Reatats: | Ve 4 06/19/20 06/19/20 10
ember 19 20
Ms.
Elizabeth
Czarnecki Trustee/M NesHemic | vas 5 06/19/20 06/19/20 10
ember 19 20
Mrs. Rita
Eisenbeis
Chal Governan Yae 14 06/19/20 06/19/20 10
ce 19 20

1/3



Richard

Mr. Rene

Mr. James

Other

Other

Secretary

Trustee/M Governan

ember

la. Are there more than 9

members of the Board of

Trustees?

ce

Yes

No

No

No

Yes

1b. Current Board Member Information

10

155 ¢
12
13
14

15

Trustee
Name
and
Email
Address

Ms.
Rosalyn
Tavlor

Position
on the
Board

Trustee/M
ember

Committ
ee
Affiliation
S

School
Culture

Voting
Member
Per By
Laws
(Y/N)

2/3

Number
of Terms
Served

06/19/20
19

06/19/20
19

06/19/20
19

06/19/20
19

Start
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

06/19/20
19

06/19/20
20

06/19/20
20

06/19/20
20

06/19/20
20

End Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

06/20/20
20

10

10

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2018 19



1c. Are there more that 15 No
members of the Board of

Trustees?

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response
relative to all trustees.

a. Total Number of BOT Members on

June 30, 2019 10
b.Total Number of Members Added 1
During 2018 19
c. Total Number of Members who >
Departed during 2018 19
d.Total Number of members in 2018 19,
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or 7
Minutes
3. Number of Board meetings 10
held during 2018-19
4. Number of Board meetings 12

scheduled for 2019-20

Thank you.
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Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes

Last updated: 07/30/2019

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting
minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19
school year.

WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Are all monthly BOT meeting No
minutes posted, which should

match the number of meetings

held during 2018-19 school year,

on the charter school's website?

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year.

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file.

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110225541/wNFCVDEEJA/

1/1



WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
JULY 25, 2018 MINUTES FOR SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Terenda Brown;
Diane Cozzo;
Elizabeth Czarnecki;
Rita Eisenbeis;
James C. Obletz;
Rosalyn Taylor;

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.
1} Ms. Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.
2) Public Comment Period
3) Charter Renewal — the charter renewal document was shared with the Board to include the
cover letter to Dr. Nevergold, Buffalo Board of Education President. We are requesting a
three-year renewal term.

4) Charter School Annual Report - Ms. Hokanson reviewed the financial disclosure.

5) After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following
resolutions were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2018 - 028 APPROVAL OF CHARTER RENEWAL APPLICATION. Resolved: the Board
unanimously approved the charter renewal application

6) Other Business

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 4:03 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary

GABUF085\Data\Westmin\WCCS\Board of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\2018\7-July 25, 201817-25-18 Meeting Minutes.docx




WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ANNUAL MEETING
AUGUST 15, 2018 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Steve Braunscheidel;
Diane Cozzo;
Elizabeth Czarnecki;
Rita Eisenbeis;
Rosalyn Taylor

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Ms. Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.

The 6-20-18 and 7-25-18 minutes were approved. 6-20-18 minutes were approved with one
correction stating that a 7-25-18 board meeting was held to review the charter renewal
application prior to submission on 7-30-18.

Public Comment Period

School Safety — Mr. Bryant, M&T Senior Director of Physical Security addressed the issue
of school safety and the possible addition of a School Resource Officer (SRO). The most
important question when making the decision to hire a SRO, does this position compliment
the school culture. We need to engage BPS and the school community to be sure the fit is
correct. Suggestion was made to hold student/parent focus groups.

Ms. Hokanson reviewed the Doyle Security upgrades. The board unanimously approved the
addition of a new entrance door directly into the Main Office. The WCCS Safety Plan will
be reviewed at the September board meeting. A position description of a School
Resource/Security Officer was reviewed to include education/training needed as well as
proposed job responsibilities.

Strategic Plan — Ms. Hokanson took the board through a high level review of the three-year
strategic plan and the overall student outcomes and school indicators. Six strategic priorities
were identified. A draft of the mission and mission outcomes were reviewed.

The board agreed that WCCS should adhere to only two lesson plans as outlined in the
strategic plan and not to deviate. It was agreed that updates to the plan would be reviewed
in some capacity at every board meeting.

Principal’s Report — Mr. Ross discussed the following topics:

a) Professional Development — internal options taught by administrators and teachers,
week long Teachers College training as well as University of Rochester, Gail Smith and
teacher led Greg Tang Math Plus are being offered to teachers this summer.

b) Teacher Mentor Program — has received an overhaul based on numerous staff
requests. Ms. Conway is leading this effort.

GABUF085\Data\Westmin\WCCS\Beard of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\2018\8-August 15, 201818-15-18 Meeting Minutes.docx




WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ANNUAL MEETING
AUGUST 15, 2018 MINUTES

c) Staffing — current new hires and resignations were shared.

d) Reflection Room — a new addition to the 2018-19 school vear. The room will have two
zones: Sensory and Work. The room will be outfitted with furniture and necessary
equipment.

¢) New Classroom Observation Forms — Teacher Glows & Grows Reflective Survey
speaks to essential elements in classroom and classroom culture. In addition the
Essential Feedback form will be utilized during classroom observation and will be
shared with teachers in real-time.

7.) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: year to date
actuals compared to the budget and the summary balance sheet as of June 30, 2018.

Ms. Hokanson also reviewed the current 2018-19 investments to name a few: roof
replacement, painting, security upgrades, window replacement, bathroom repair and overall
enhancements to classrooms and library.

8.) After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following
resolutions were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2018 - 029 CONTRACT WITH MURRAY ROOFING. Resolved: That the contractor will tear
off and replace the entire school roef not to exceed $598,000.

2018 — 030 CONTRACT WITH BISON PAINTING. Resolved: That the contractor will paint
the 1st and 2™ floor hallways, stairways, bathrooms, dining hall and atrium not to exceed
$49,800.

2018 — 031 CONTRACT WITH DOYLE SECURITY. Resolved: That the contractor will
install and monitor various security components not to exceed $85,000.

2018 - 032 CONTRACT WITH GAIL SMITH. Resolved: That the contract with Gail Smith to
provide professional development services during the summer of 2018 be approved. The cost for
these services is $1,000 per day, not to exceed a total of $2,000.

2018 — 033 CONTRACT FOR STUDENT WORKER SERVICES. Resolved: That Tyrese King,
student worker perform various summer work duties from August 8 to August 31, 2018 be approved.

2018 -034 APPROVAL OF WCCS 1.OAN ASSISTANCE PROGRAM. Resolved: That six
teacher loan assistance agreements totaling $30,000 be approved.

2018 -035 APPROVAL OF WCCS TUITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM. Resolved: That
two teacher tuition assistance agreements be approved. Payment will be made upon successful
completion of course and final grade. '

GABUF085\Data\Westmin\WCCS\Board of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\201818-August 15, 201818-15-18 Mesting Minutes.docx




WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ANNUAL MEETING
AUGUST 15, 2018 MINUTES

2018 - 036 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS. Resolved: That contract estimates to include
balance of interior painting not to exceed $22,600 and windows not to exceed $18,000 be
approved. '

2019-037 CHANGES TO CALENDAR. Resolved: That the following changes to the
Westminster Community Charter School 2018-19 calendar be approved.

2018-19 WCCS Calendar Changes

Date BPS Original WCCS Changed

10/3/2018 No School 1 | No School 1
11/29/2018 | Full Day 0 | No School 1
4/10/2018 Early Release 5 i Full Day 0
4/11/2018 No School 1 | Full Day 0
4/12/2018 Full Day ) | No School 1
5/8/2018 Early Release | .5 | Full Day 0
5/9/2018 No School 1 | Full Day 0
5/10/2018 Full Day 0 | No School 1
TOTAL 4 4

2018 -038 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25.000. Resolved: That the following
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:
¢ Heinemann — June Invoice - $67,661
New York State Insurance — July Invoice - $40,114
Blue Cross Blue Shield - July Invoice - $69,831
Blue Cross Blue Shield - August Invoice - $70,620
Murray Roofing — August Invoice - $243,000

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on .motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 5:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Ay §. Wesc

Board Secretary

GABUF085\DataiWestmin\WCCS\Board of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\2018\8-August 15, 201848-15-18 Meeting Minutes.docx




WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ANNUAL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 19, 2018 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Steve Braunscheidel;
Terenda Brown;
Diane Cozzo;
Elizabeth Czarnecki;
Rita Eisenbeis;
Rosalyn Taylor

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.
1) Ms. Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.

2) The 8-15-18 minutes were approved

—

3) Public Comment Period

4) Charter Board Partners — Chairman Eisenbeis reminded the board of the upcoming
Governance Committee training available on October 12 and November 17, 2018 and
encouraged attendance.

5) Principal’s Report — Mr. Ross discussed the following topics:

a) Strategic Plan Top Six Initiatives — discussed the strategic focus for September and
October: clarify and implement the plan with fidelity; ensure grade appropriate rigor
and alignment; create and implement school-wide vision of essential elements; create
and implement school-wide vision for student culture; strengthen staff recruitment,
engagement and retention and implement operation systems that enable administrators
to be focused on teaching and learning.

b) Reflection on NYS test results and focus for the 2018-19 year,

¢) Professional Development Plan — outlined ten standards for teacher Professional
Development for the 2018-19 school year.

d) A general discussion about teacher performance and TIP Plans was discussed amongst
board members. '

6.) Assessment Scores - Mr. Ross and Ms. Hokanson provided a high level review of:
a) ELA, Math & Science Proficiency Comparison Over Time
b) NYS ELA and Math Proficiency by Grade
¢} WCCS Year to Year Comparison
d) ELA and Math Comparison by Grade

7.) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: year to date
actuals compared to the budget and the summary balance sheet as of August 31, 2018.

G ABUF085\Data\Westmin\WCCS\Board of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\2018'9-September 19, 201819-19-18 Meeting
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ANNUAL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 19, 2018 MINUTES

8.) After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following
resolutions were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2018 - 039 APPROVAL OF 2018-19 PROFESSIONAIL DEVELOPMENT PLAN. Resolved:
That the Westminster Community Charter School 2018-19 Professional Development Plan be
approved.

2018 — 040 APPROVAL OF 2018-19 SAFETY PLAN AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE
PROCEDURES. Resolved: That the Westminster Community Charter School 2018-19 Safety
Plan and Emergency Response Procedures be approved.

2018 - 041 CONTRACT WITH TGR ENTERPRISES. Resolved: That the contractor will
replace 12 windows not to exceed $18,500.

2018 - 042 CONTRACT WITH PAUL POWELL. Resolved: That the consultant will provide
coaching to Principal Ross during the 2018-19 school year not to exceed $8,500.

2018 — 043 CONTRACT WITH TRAUTMAN KING ET AL. Resolved: That the architect will
reconfigure specifications of Front Office for new door installation not to exceed $6,960.

2018 — 044 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25.000. Resolved: That the following
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:
- o Blue Cross Blue Shield - Estimated October Invoice - $70,000.00
Murray Roofing - $422,280
New York State Taxation & Finance - $129,492
Bison Painting - $72,400
Doyle Security Systems - $84,495

9.) 2019 board meeting dates were reviewed and approved by the Board.

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 4:45 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary

G\BUF085\Data\Westmin\WCCS\Board of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\2018\9-September 19, 201819-19-18 Meeting
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ANNUAL MEETING
OCTOBER 17,2018 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Steve Braunscheidel,;
Terenda Brown;
Diane Cozzo;
Elizabeth Czarnecki;
Rita Eisenbeis;
James Obletz

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.
1) Ms. Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.
2) The 9-19-18 minutes were approved
3) Public Comment Period

4) Principal’s Report — Mr. Ross discussed the following topics:
a) Strategic Focus October-November
b) Grade Level Rigor & Alignment
c) Assessment Schedule — current schedule copy provided
d) 3-8 Next Generation ELA Standards Overview — information pulled from NYSED

School Resource Officer: Mr. Ross held a small parent focus group to discuss hiring a School
Resource Officer. Parents are in favor however, they do not want an off-duty police officer and
they do not want the officer to carry a weapon. They would like to see a community member
that knows the neighborhood/school to fill this position. Buftalo Peacekeepers were also
discussed and will be contacted to see if they have any candidates in the pipeline. The position
description/requirements will be reviewed and discussion will continue at subsequent board
meetings.

Physical Education Teacher: Mr. Ross informed the board that Mr. Northrup resigned. The
~ position has been posted on WNYRIC but there have been no applicants. The board agreed that
they are in favor of posting the position through other sources.

6.) Assessment Analysis — Ms. Hokanson provided a high level review of the following charts:
a) Westminster Students Returning
b) ELA & Math Proficiency Comparison Over Time
c) NYS ELA & Math Proficiency by Grade
d) ELA & Math Proficiency — by grade and teacher
) 4% through 8™ Grade Level Change
) ELA & Match Proficiency Improvement Scenarios

GABUF085\Data\Westmin\WCCS\Board of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\2018\10-October 17, 2018\10-17-18 Meeting
Minutes.docx




WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ANNUAL MEETING
OCTOBER 17, 2018 MINUTES

7.) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: year to date
actuals compared to the budget and the summary balance sheet as of September 30, 2018.

8.) After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following
resolutions were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2018 - 045 REIMBURSEMENT OF M&T BANK CONTRIBUTIONS FOR SERVICES
RENDERED TO WESTMINSTER. Resolved: That pursuant to the terms of the Business
Services Agreement, effective July 1, 2014, between M&T Bank (“M&T™) and Westminster
Community Charter School (“WCCS™), it is hereby determined by the Board of Trustees that
WCCS shall pay to M&T the amount of $483,607.95 out of its aggregate accumulated cash
operating surplus as reimbursement of M&T’s contributions and the value of the in-kind services
provided during the 2016-17 school year; provided, that it is the Board of Trustees’
understanding that M&T intends on contributing these funds to the Westminster Foundation for
future educational purposes related directly or indirectly to WCCS or as designated within the
purposes outlined in the Certificate of Incorporation of the Westminster Foundation.

2018 - 046 APPROVAL OF VENDOR LIST. Resolved: That the Westminster Community
Charter School New Vendor list be approved.

2018 - 047 CONTRACT WITH FSR CONTRACTING INC. Resolved: That the contractor
will repoint the brick on the west side of the fourth floor at Westminster not to exceed $48,000.

2018 — 048 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25.000. Resolved: That the following
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:

e Blue Cross Blue Shield - November Invoice - $83,772.74

» Murray Roofing - $55,620.00

e NYS Teachers Retirement - $129,491.90

9) Chairman Fisenbeis and Ms. Cozzo led a board exercise titled “Save the Last Word” that was
shared at the Charter Board Partners Board Member Training Program earlier in the month.

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 4:45 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary

GABUF085\Data\Westmin\WCCS\Board of WCCS\Agendas & Minutes\2018110-October 17, 2018\10-17-18 Meeting
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
NOVEMBER 21, 2018 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Terenda Brown;
Diane Cozzo;
Elizabeth Czamecki;
Rita Eisenbeis;
James C. Obletz;

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.

1)
2)
3)

4)

5)

Chairman Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.

The October 17, 2018 minutes were approved.

Public Comment Period

Audit Report — Ms. Hopkins and Ms. Torella from Lumsden & McCormick presented the

- 2017-18 audit report.

Presentations

a) Buffalo Board of Education Presentation
i. Public hearing in regards to the charter renewal of Westminster Communlty
Charter School is scheduled for Wednesday, December 12, 2018. The hearing
will take place at 4:00pm in City Hall, Room 801.
it. The following items are required to be presented:

- L
2.
3.

4.
5.

6.

Mission/vision of the school

Proposed grade level configuration

Anticipated curriculum and alignment to Common Core Learning

Standards ‘

Recruitment methods

Three years of data to support the need for the school to include:
e Academic data for ELA, math

ELL%

SWD%

Attendance

Suspension
o Diversity of administrators, teachers and counselors

Financial Summary — including reserves

iii. A list of the names of individuals who will speak on the school’s behalf
along with how they are connected to the school _
b) A general discussion was had by all board members to agree upon and determine the
direction of the presentation.
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
NOVEMBER 21, 2018 MINUTES

6) Charter Board Partners — Chairman Eisenbeis discussed the possibility of instituting a
committee or committees along with holding a board retreat in 2019. Board members '
present were in agreement and will discuss next steps at the January board meeting.

7) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: year to date
actuals compared to the budget and the summary balance sheet as of October 31, 2018.

After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following resolutions
were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2018 - 049 CONTRACT FOR STUDENT WORKER SERVICES. Resolved: That Tyrese
King and Marcus Hawkins, student workers perform various duties during the 2018-19
Community School Saturday Academies, as needed be approved.

2018 - 050 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25,000. Resolved: That the following
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:

e Blue Cross Blue Shield - $81,201.64

¢ Philadelphia Insurance Companies - $44,415.00

¢ New York State Teachers’ Retirement System - $129,491.90

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 4:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
DECEMBER 19, 2018 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Terenda Brown;

Diane Cozzo;

Elizabeth Czarnecki,

Rita Eisenbeis;

James C. Obletz;
Rosalyn Taylor

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.

1)
2)
3)
4)

)

Chairman Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 12:41 p.m.

The November 21, 2018 minutes were approved.

Public Comment Period

Chairman Eisenbeis announced that David Chamberlain would be retiring in March of 2019
as President of WCCS and CEO of Buffalo Promise Neighborhood. ‘He will remain an
active WCCS and Westminster Foundation board member.

Trustees Board Open Discussion — in David Chamberlain’s absence, Amy Mest reported

that we are coordinating with the Charter Board Partners to discuss the possibility of a board
retreat in the New Year where the role of the board and board committees will be discussed.

After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following resolutions
were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2018-051 APPROVAL OF WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
APPOINTMENTS. Resolved: That the following appointments to Westminster
Community Charter School be approved.

President — Pamela Hokanson

2018-052 CONTRACT WITH FSR CONTRACTING INC. Resolved: That the
contractor will replace the steel on the third floor window and re-caulk all windows
in the specified work area not to exceed $18,500.

2018-053 CONTRACT WITH BISON PAINTING. Resolved: That the contractor
will strip and refinish bannisters and handrails in four stairwells between the first
and fourth floors not to exceed $14,000.

2018-054 CONTRACT WITH GYPSUM SYSTEMS. Resolved: That the contractor
will install a new entry door in the Front Office not to exceed $17,500
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
DECEMBER 19, 2018 MINUTES

2018-055 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25.000. Resolved: That the
following expenditures over $25,000 be approved:
Blue Cross Blue Shield - $83,568.91
BTF Supplemental - $32,400.00
Buffalo Board of Education - $598,459.29
FSR Contracting - $47,325.00
Erie 1 BOCES - $27,519.68
M&T Bank - $483,607.95
NYS Teacher Retirement - $31,670

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 1:30 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FEBRUARY 27,2019 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Steve Braunscheidel;
Terenda Brown,
Diane Cozzo;
Elizabeth Czamecki;
Rita Eisenbeis;

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.

1.) Chairman Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.

2.) The December 19, 2018 minutes were approved.

3.) Public Comment Period

Presentations

Ms. Nancy Ware spoke to the board about the two early childhood education centers at Bailey
Avenue and Gerard Place. Highlights included the new center opening at Gerard Place with
98 children enrolled; girls dance classes and boys gymnastic classes, field trips as well as
ongoing academic enrichment programs.

Mr. David Zapfel provided an overview of the Gerard Place Community Center. Highlights
included Allied Health workforce development, health, nutrition and culinary arts job training
and community dining hall family style dinners with support from Friends of the Night
People.

Ms. Pam Hokanson provided an overview of CA at Gerard Place, Highgate Heights and
Westminster Community Charter School. Highlights included ESSA status, WCCS charter
renewal, Promise Scholars update, assessment and testing, upcoming events, clubs and the
adoption of a sister school in Ghana.

Mr. Chamberlain presented the Principal Performance Assessment and rubric used to rate Mr.
Ross’s 2017-18 performance. ‘

Chairman Eisenbeis briefly reviewed the Charter Board Partners Board Effectiveness
Diagnostic Report for Westminster Community Charter School. Shereen Williams from
Charter Board Partners will lead a three-hour training with the Board on March 20, 2019 to
focus on the trustees role as well as current and future analysis.

4.) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: July 1, 2018 to
January 31, 2019 Actual vs. Budget Year-to-Date for the seven month period ending January 31,
2019 and Summary Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2019,
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FEBRUARY 27, 2019 MINUTES

After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following resolutions were
unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2019 - 001 APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBER TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES.
Resolved: That David K. Chamberlain, retired CEO of Buffalo Promise Neighborhood and
Senior Vice President of M&T Bank, be elected as a member of the Board of Trustees until the
next annual meeting, subject to approval by the Charter Authorizer, the Buffalo Board of
Education.

2019 - 002 CONTRACT WITH BISON PAINTING. Resolved: That the contractor will replaster
the water damaged 4™ floor wall not to exceed $6,000.

2019-003 APPROVAL OF THE STANDARD WORK DAY RESQLUTION FOR EMPLOYEES.

Resolved: That WCCS hereby establishes the standard work day for its employees and will
report to New York State and Local Retirement System based on the established time keeping
system.

2019 — 004 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25.000. Resolved: That the following
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:
Blue Cross & Blue Shield January Invoice $72,764
Blue Cross & Blue Shield February Invoice $103,471.92
Murray Roofing $60,000

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 5:00pm

Respectfully submitted.

Homg 9. Wes

Board Secretary
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
' BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MARCH 20, 2019 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Steve Braunscheidel;
Terenda Brown,;
David Chamberlain;
Diane Cozzo;

Rita Eisenbeis;
James C. Obletz;
Rosalyn Taylor;

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.
1) Chairman Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.
2) The February 27, 2019 minutes were approved.
3) Public Comment Period

4) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: year to date
actuals compared to the budget and the summary balance sheet as of February 28, 2019,

5) Annual Conflict of Interest Statement - Ms. Mesi provided copies of the Conflict of
Interest Policy, the Code of Ethics, and the annual statements to Board members.

After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following resolutions
were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2019-005 APPROVAL OF RESCHEDULED SCORING DATES. Resolved: That the
scoring dates for ELA and Math be changed to April 8 and May 16, 2019 respectively,

2019-006 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25.000. Resolved: That the following
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:
e Blue Cross Blue Shield March Invoice - $77,980

6) Other Business — Board members discussed the possibility of changing the board meeting
time and location. Further discussion will be required.

Board adjourned to Executive Session

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 2:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary
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COMBINED WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL AND
WESTMINSTER FOUNDATION
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
APRIL 17,2019 MINUTES

[n attendance at the Board meeting were:

Steve Braunscheidel;
Terenda Brown;
David Chamberlain;
Liz Czarnecki;

Rita Eisenbeis;
James C. Obletz;

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.
1) Chairman Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:02 p.m.
2) The March 20, 2019 minutes were approved.
3) Public Comment Period

4) Promise Scholar Update — Ms. Chamberlain provided an overview of the Buffalo Promise
Scholar program. The update took us from inception in 2013 through the current year.

5) Parent Achievement Zone Update — Ms. Wisner provided an overview of the Two-
Generation program. Services, results and findings were reviewed. The new team was laid
out for the board to include additional program supports and critical services available to
support the whole family.

6) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: year to date
actuals compared to the budget and the summary balance sheet as of March 31, 2019.

After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the followmg resolutions
were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2019 —-007 CONTRACT WITH JOHN W. DANFORTH. Resolved: That the contractor will
replace 6 drinking fountains to include necessary electrical work not to exceed $24,000.

2019 — 008 CONTRACT WITH N. CHOOPS PAINTING. Resolved: That the coniractor will
paint all classrooms, offices, gym stairs and ceiling, kitchen and auditorium not to exceed
$116,000.

2019 — 009 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25.000. Resolved: That the following’
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:
s Blue Cross & Blue Shield April Invoice $75,000

7) Chairman Fisenbeis reviewed the Board Level Goals established during our Charter Board
Partners training sesston. The board sub-committee members will bring their first round of
results for discussion to the May board meeting
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COMBINED WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL AND
WESTMINSTER FOUNDATION
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
APRIL 17, 2019 MINUTES

Board adjourned to Executive Session

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 4:48 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MAY 15, 2019 MINUTES

In attendance at the Board meeting were:

Steve Braunscheidel;
Terenda Brown;
David Chamberiain;
Liz Czarnecki;

Rita Eisenbeis;
Rosalyn Taylor;

constituting a majority of the Board of Trustees and a quorum.
1) Chairman Eisenbeis called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.
2} The April 17, 2019 minutes were approved.
3} Public Comment Period

4} Principal Update — Mr. Ross provided a school overview to include: charter renewal, NYS
ELA scoring, state testing, 2019-20 staffing and upcoming events.

5} Board Committee Reports — Academic, Finance, Human Resources and School Culture
sub-committees provided the Board with their first report. Sub-committee reports will
continue to be an agenda item on meetings going forward.

6) Financial Update — Ms. Hokanson reviewed the following financial reports: year to date
actuals compared to the budget and the summary balance sheet as of April 30, 2019.

Board adjourned to Executive Session

After thorough discussion and upon motion duly made and seconded, the following resolutions
were unanimously adopted by the Board of Trustees:

2019-010 APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER $25,000. Resolved: That the following
expenditures over $25,000 be approved:
Blue Cross Blue Shield - May Invoice - $83,091.41

2019-011 APPROVAL OF WCCS TUITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM. Resolved: That
two teacher tuition assistance agreements be approved. Payment will be made upon successful
completion of course and final grade.

2019-012 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH N. CHOOPS PAINTING. Resolved: That
the contractor will paint all classrooms, offices, gym stairs and ceiling, kitchen and auditorium
for $115,840.

2019-013 APPROVAL OF VENDOR LIST. Resolved: That the Westminster Community
Charter School New Vendor list be approved.
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WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MAY 15, 2019 MINUTES

2019 -014 WCCS SIGNERS FOR OPERATING ACCOUNT. Resolved: That Pamela
Hokanson, Laura Ferrino, Patrick Schunk and Richard Gold be authorized to verify the
appropriateness of school payments and serve as the primary or counter signer of checks in any
amount for the school’s General Operating Checking Account. (All checks must have two
signers.)

There being no further business to come before the Trustees, on motion duly made, seconded and
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 4:12 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Board Secretary
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Entry 10 Enroliment and Retention of Special

Populations
Created: 07/02/2019 -« Last updated: 07/31/2019

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain
enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who
are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress

toward meeting its enroliment and retention targets in 2019 20.

WESTMINSTER COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19

Westminster Community Charter School
developed a recruitment timeline: January
began advertising open registration. January

March, the school held open houses,
recruitment brochures were distributed to
Buffalo Promise Neighborhood's Children
Academies, community spaces and surround
local businesses. Families were invited to
meet with staff and review the expectations
of the school. Interested families were
invited to submit applications through April
1st. The lottery was held on April 8.
Advertisements and recruitment efforts
include: All printed materials (flyers, notices,
brochures, applications, website) and
advertisements (newspaper ads, billboards,
posters) clearly indicate enrollment is open
without regard to ethnicity, national origin,
gender, disability, and/or limited English
proficiency. Advertisements are printed in
five languages. Advertisements for
applications for enrollment to WCCS were
placed in businesses around WCCS. Teachers
and staff are present at the Children
Academies Edukids Campuses, to meet
parents and advertise the school. Notices
and re enrollment packets were distributed
to current WCCS families.

1/3

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20

Westminster Community Charter School will
meet and attempt to exceed enrollment and
retention targets for students who are
economically disadvantaged. Formal
recruitment begins on January 1st. Open
houses, advertisements, flyers, social media,
website and personal letters to current
students to refer friends and family members
will continue this year. Interested families
submit applications through April 1st (or the
next school day in the event the 1stis not a
school day). After this date, students are
accepted or, if the number of applicants
exceeds capacity, a random selection
process is used to assign spaces. The lottery
is held after April 1st annually and students
are notified shortly thereafter.
Advertisements and recruitment efforts will
continue to indicate enrollment is open
without regard to ethnicity, national origin,
gender, disability, and/or limited English
proficiency. Advertisements are printed in
five languages. Teachers and staff will meet
with interested families at our early learning
campuses and notices and re enrollment
packets will continue to be sent to current
WCCS families.



English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
S

Student
s with
Disabilit
ies

Formal recruit began in January with
advertisements for open registration. The
school held open houses and distributed
materials (brochures) translated in Spanish,
Arabic, Karen, and Bengali, reflecting the
most widely spoken languages in Buffalo and
the Westminster community. Teachers and
staff presented and advertised the school at
local community spaces and events,
including the Puerto Rican Day Parade and
other local cultural events. The school held a
multi cultural evening, hosted by our ENL
teacher. Advertisements were placed in a
local multilingual refugee and immigrant
focused newspaper and brochures were
distributed to various immigrant and refugee
centers along with other businesses.

All printed materials (flyers, notices,
brochures, applications, website, social
media) clearly indicate that enroliment is
open without regard to ethnicity, national
origin gender, disability, and/or limited
English proficiency. Materials were placed at
WNY Help Center, Parent Network of WNY,
and various immigrant and refugee service
centers. Additionally, current students and
administration staff were featured on a local
radio station about the school.

2/3

Westminster Community Charter School will
meet and attempt to exceed enrollment and
retention targets for English Language
Learners. Formal recruitment begins in
January. Advertising open registration,
families, if they choose, meet with staff and
review the expectations of the school.
Interested families submit applications
through April 1st (or the next school day if
April 1st is not a school day). After this date,
students are accepted or, if the number of
applicants exceeds capacity, random
selection process is used to assign spaces.
The lotter is held after April 1st. All printed
materials and advertisements are translated
in five languages. Open houses will be held
and teachers will recruit at our early learning
campuses. Advertisements will be placed in
local newspapers and printed materials will
be distributed to various immigrant and
refuges service centers.

Westminster Community Charter School will
meet and attempt to exceed enrollment and
retention targets for students with
disabilities. The school's printed materials
clearly indicate that enrollment is open
without regard to ethnicity, national origin,
gender, disability and/or limited English
proficiency. All printed materials are in five
languages most prominent in Buffalo. Our
teachers recruit at our early education
campuses, WNY Help Center and other early
education providers.



Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
S

Student
s with
Disabilit
ies

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19

For the 2018 19 school year, 87% of
economically disadvantaged students re
enrolled. Vacancies exist as a result of the
8th grade students who graduate in June and
a small percentage of students who leave for
a variety of reasons, including moving out of
the district. Students receive free breakfast,
lunch and a snack; waivers for field trip cost;
Saturday programming for families that
includes free breakfast and lunch; and
uniform cost waivers. Students have access
to academic supports such as AIS/RTI, small
class sizes and after school tutoring and
clubs.

For the 2018 19 school year, 100% of English
Language Learners re enrolled at the school.
English Language Learners at Westminster
work daily with the ENL teachers. She
provides pull out and push in services. They
will receive accommodations/modifications
necessary to promote their success in the
classroom and beyond.

For the 2018 19 school year, 95% of
students with disabilities re enrolled at
Westminster Community Charter School. A
special education coordinator provides
teachers with professional development and
research based strategies and progress
monitoring tools to help students with
disabilities succeed. There is a special
education teacher in each grade level to
support students with disabilities.

3/3

Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20

Westminster will continue to provide
numerous opportunities to students.
Students will continue to receive free
breakfast, lunch and a snack; waivers of field
trip costs; Saturday programming for families
that includes free breakfast and lunch; and
uniform cost waivers. Students will continue
having access to academic supports such as
AIS/RTI, small class sizes, and after school
clubs and tutoring.

The school will continue to provide
appropriate services based on the responses
provided on the Home Language
Questionnaire that is provided during the
time of registration at WCCS. Students who
are English Language Learners will continue
to work with the full time ENL teacher.

Professional development opportunities and
resources will continue to be provided to best
serve students with disabilities.
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator
Attrition

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing.

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables
Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and
Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing
during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of
staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June
30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the
FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
using the tables provided.

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE of

Teachers on Teachers Teachers Filling Teachers Added  Classroom

6/30/18 Departed 7/1/18 Vacant Positions in New Positions Teachers on
6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019

48 15 13 5 51

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Administrative Administrators Administrators Administrators Administrative

Positions on Departed 7/1/18 Filling Vacant Added in New Positions on

6/30/18 6/30/19 Positions 7/1/18  Positions 7/1/18  6/30/19
6/30/19 6/30/19

3 0 0 0 3

1/2



3. Tell your school's story

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some
teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within
the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a
teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school.

(No response)

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance
through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA)
prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of
individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been
terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH
system.

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system?

Yes

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you
terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system?

Not Applicable

Thank you
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ﬁ Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each
column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers
would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include
paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants.

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be
counted only once.
FTE Count
1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19)

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching 3
experience (6 30 19)

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19)

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19)

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 1
experience (6 30 19)

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19)

FTE Count of All Uncertified 4
Teachers as of 6/30/19

FTE Count of All Certified 47
Teachers as of 6/30/19

Thank you.
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2018- 2019 Westminster Community Charter School Organization Chart

Board of Trustees
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2019-2020 BUFFALO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT CALENDAR (Version C - BTF Agreed)

JULY 2019 JANUARY 2020 Teacher Days/Days Students are in Attendance
Month| Tchr. | PK-8*% | H.S.* |Month| Tchr. | PK-8* | H.S.*

1 2 3 5 6 2 3 q Sept| 20 17 17 Feb 15 15 15
718 9|10|11|12(13|| 5| 6| 7| 8] 9|10| 11 Oct| 22 22 22 Mar 22 22 22
14|15|16|17|18|19|20(|12|13|14|15|16]| 17| 18 Nov| 17 17 17 | April 16 14 14
21(22(23|124|25|26|27|| 19 21| 22|23 |24 | 25 Dec| 15 15 15 May 20 20 20
2812930 31 26| 27| 28[129|30]31 Jan| 21 21 17 | June 20 19 11
AUGUST 2019 FEBRUARY 2020 Totals:| 95 92 88 |Totals:| 93 90 82

m S ML T Wi Total Teacher Days: 188
1123 1 Total Student Days: PK-8= 182 HS= 170
4|15|6|7|8|9|10|[2]3]|]4]|]5]|]6]7 8 IMPORTANT DATES

11|12(13(14(15|16|17|| 9 |10| 11| 12| 13| 14| 15 | July

18|19 20| 21|22|23|24|| 16 18|19| 20| 21| 22 4 Independence Day (central office also closed)
25|26(27|28|29|30|31(|23|24|25|26|27|28| 29 | September
SEPTEMBER 2019 MARCH 2020 2 Labor Day (central office also closed)
3, 4 Sup't Conf. Day (professional development)
1 3| 4|5|6|7]||1]2|3[a]|]5]|6]| 7 5 Teacher Set-up Day
8(9)10(11]12|13(14|| 8| 9 |10|11(12|13| 14 6 First Day of Classes
15(16|17|18|19|20(21|{15|16| 17| 18| 19| 20| 21 | October
22|123|124|25|26(27|28|(22|123(24|25|26|27| 28 14 Columbus Day (central office also closed)
29| 30 29|30 31 November
APRIL 2020 5 Election Day (central office also closed)

S 11 Veterans Day (central office also closed)

1(2]|]3|4]5 23| a 28, 29 Thanksgiving Recess (central office also closed)
67| 8|9|10|11|12||5| 6| 78] 9 11 | December
13 15|16 17 (18| 19 (| 12 14(15(16| 17| 18 23-31 Winter Recess

20(21(22(23]|24|25(26||19|20|21|22|23|24| 25 | 24,25 Central Office Also Closed
27 28] 29]30]31 26| 27 28 |38 30 January

NOVEMBER 2019 MAY 2020 1 New Year's Day (central office also closed)

S M T W T T W T 20 M.L. King Jr. Day (central office also closed)
1 2 21-24 NYS Regents Exams (high school)
3|4 6|7 |8|9|[3[a[5([6|[7|[8]| 9| February
10 1213|1415 16|/ 1011|1213 |14| 15| 16 17 President's Day (central office also closed)
17|118(19|20(21|22|23|(17(18|19(20| 21| 22| 23 18-21 Mid-winter recess
24| 25| 26| 27 30 || 24 26 (27128 29| 30 | March
31 25-27 NYS ELA Testing (grades 3-8)
DECEMBER 2019 JUNE 2020 April

S M T W T F S S M W T F S 1 Early Release Day
1({2|3]|4a]|]5|6]|7 1 2 Sup't. Conf. Day
8(9|10|11|12|13|14|| 7| 8| 9 (10])11|12| 13 10-17 Spring Recess
15(16(17)18|19(20|21(|14(15(16| 17| 18| 19| 20 | 10,13 Central Office Also Closed

N
w
E~]
1% ]
[<)]

22|23 26|27 |28||21(22]|23|24|25| 26| 27 21-23 NYS Math Testing (grades 3-8)
29(30( 31 28 (29| 30 29 Early Release Day
30 Sup't. Conf. Day

H.S. Regents Exams ><Centra| Office Also Closed May

3-8 NYS Testing ESu p't. Conference Day 25 Memorial Day (central office also closed)

Schools Closed -Early Release Day June

2 NYS Regents Exams (high school)

*Per past practice, student attendance is not taken on Sup't. Conf. Days 17-25 NYS Regents Exams (high school)
(4/2, 4/30) or H.S. Regents Exam Days (1/21-1/24; 6/2; 6/17-6/25) 25 Last Day of Classes

26 Rating Day/Sup't. Conf. Day
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